

☞ 05hr_AC-CF_CRule_06-044_pt01



(FORM UPDATED: 08/11/2010)

WISCONSIN STATE LEGISLATURE ... PUBLIC HEARING - COMMITTEE RECORDS

2005-06

(session year)

Assembly

(Assembly, Senate or Joint)

Committee on ... Children and Families (AC-CF)

COMMITTEE NOTICES ...

- Committee Reports ... **CR**
- Executive Sessions ... **ES**
- Public Hearings ... **PH**

INFORMATION COLLECTED BY COMMITTEE FOR AND AGAINST PROPOSAL

- Appointments ... **Appt** (w/Record of Comm. Proceedings)
- Clearinghouse Rules ... **CRule** (w/Record of Comm. Proceedings)
- Hearing Records ... bills and resolutions (w/Record of Comm. Proceedings)
 - (**ab** = Assembly Bill) (**ar** = Assembly Resolution) (**ajr** = Assembly Joint Resolution)
 - (**sb** = Senate Bill) (**sr** = Senate Resolution) (**sjr** = Senate Joint Resolution)
- Miscellaneous ... **Misc**

* Contents organized for archiving by: Stefanie Rose (LRB) (May 2012)

Assembly

Record of Committee Proceedings

Committee on Children and Families

Clearinghouse Rule 06-044

Relating to Wisconsin Works, emergency assistance, and child care, and affecting small businesses.

Submitted by Department of Workforce Development.

July 27, 2006 Referred to Committee on Children and Families.

August 29, 2006 No action taken.

David Matzen
Committee Clerk





WISCONSIN LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL RULES CLEARINGHOUSE

Ronald Sklansky
Clearinghouse Director

Richard Sweet
Clearinghouse Assistant Director

Terry C. Anderson
Legislative Council Director

Laura D. Rose
Legislative Council Deputy Director

CLEARINGHOUSE REPORT TO AGENCY

[THIS REPORT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO S. 227.15, STATS. THIS IS A REPORT ON A RULE AS ORIGINALLY PROPOSED BY THE AGENCY; THE REPORT MAY NOT REFLECT THE FINAL CONTENT OF THE RULE IN FINAL DRAFT FORM AS IT WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LEGISLATURE. THIS REPORT CONSTITUTES A REVIEW OF, BUT NOT APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL OF, THE SUBSTANTIVE CONTENT AND TECHNICAL ACCURACY OF THE RULE.]

CLEARINGHOUSE RULE **06-044**

AN ORDER to repeal DWD 16.04 (note), 16.08 (3), 17.04 (2), 55.03 (1), (2) (a) and (b); to renumber DWD 16.08 (4) and (6), 55.03 (2) (c) and (d), and 56.08 (2) (c), (d), and (e); to renumber and amend DWD 16.08 (5) and 17.04 (3); to amend DWD 12.17 (2) (a) 1., 16.04, 16.08 (1), 17.01, 17.02 (5), (6), (7), and (8), 17.03 (2) (title), (a) (intro.), 1., 4., and 6a. and 6b., and (4) (intro.) and (4) (note), 17.04 (1) (intro.), (a) and (d) 1. and 2., 17.06, 17.07 (1) and (2), 17.07 (note), and 56.08 (1); to repeal and recreate DWD 17.03 (1) and (3); and to create DWD 16.08 (4), 17.02 (7m), (8m), and (9m), 17.03 (1m), (2) (a) 5g., 5r., and 6d., 17.04 (1) (cg), (cr), and (d) 4., and 56.08 (2) (c), relating to Wisconsin Works, emergency assistance, and child care, and affecting small businesses.

Submitted by **DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT**

04-27-2006 RECEIVED BY LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

05-24-2006 REPORT SENT TO AGENCY.

RNS:AS



WISCONSIN LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL RULES CLEARINGHOUSE

Ronald Sklansky
Clearinghouse Director

Richard Sweet
Clearinghouse Assistant Director

Terry C. Anderson
Legislative Council Director

Laura D. Rose
Legislative Council Deputy Director

CLEARINGHOUSE RULE 06-044

Comments

[NOTE: All citations to “Manual” in the comments below are to the Administrative Rules Procedures Manual, prepared by the Revisor of Statutes Bureau and the Legislative Council Staff, dated January 2005.]

2. Form, Style and Placement in Administrative Code

- a. In several SECTIONS, the DWD prefix and section number should be included at the beginning of the text. For example, in SECTION 1, “DWD 12.17” should be inserted before “(2)”.
- b. In s. DWD 17.01 (1) and (2), “and” should be replaced with “and”.
- c. In s. DWD 17.03 (1m), the quotation marks around the effective date language should be deleted.

5. Clarity, Grammar, Punctuation and Use of Plain Language

- a. In s. DWD 16.04, should an application include some description of the emergency to be considered complete? Also in that section, it appears that the note to s. DWD 16.04 should not be repealed because it provides information on how to obtain an application form.
- b. In the note to s. DWD 17.04 (2), as renumbered, the current note places the second sentence in a separate paragraph.



Jim Doyle
Governor

Roberta Gassman
Secretary



State of Wisconsin

Department of Workforce Development

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

201 East Washington Avenue
P.O. Box 7946
Madison, WI 53707-7946
Telephone: (608) 266-7552
Fax: (608) 266-1784
<http://www.dwd.state.wi.us/>

Rule Analysis for Legislative Review

Proposed Rules Relating to Wisconsin Works, Emergency Assistance, and Child Care DWD 12, 16, 17, 55, and 56 CR 06-044

Basis and Purpose of the Proposed Rules

In response to a report issued by the Legislative Audit Bureau, the Department proposes to eliminate the requirement that the average of all job access loans issued by a W-2 agency in a 12-month period not exceed \$800.

The proposed W-2 training rules provide new requirements for W-2 agency supervisors. They also clarify that training requirements apply to workers who are performing the function of a W-2 resource specialist, FEP, or supervisor, regardless of their job title in the local W-2 agency or whether they are working under a subcontract with the W-2 agency.

The proposed child care rules provide that subsidized guardians have no copayment responsibility. This will allow subsidized guardians and foster parents to be treated the same in determining both child care financial eligibility and copayment responsibility.

Other changes are minor substantive changes, statutory updates, or technical corrections.

Public Hearing Summary

A public hearing was held on May 31, 2006. No comments were received.

Response to Legislative Council Staff Recommendations

All comments were accepted. The department added "reason for emergency" to the emergency assistance application requirements. This change was also made in the analysis prepared under s. 227.14 (2), Stats.

Final Regulatory Flexibility Analysis

The proposed rule affects small businesses but does not have a significant economic impact on a substantial number of small businesses.

Department Contacts

Janice Peters, Director
Bureau of Wisconsin Works
Division of Workforce Solutions
266-7456

Germaine Mayhew
W-2 Partner Training Section Chief
Division of Workforce Solutions
266-7456

Laura Saterfield
Child Care Section Chief
Division of Workforce Solutions
266-3443

Elaine Pridgen
Administrative Rules Coordinator
Office of Legal Counsel
267-9403

State of Wisconsin
Department of Workforce Development
Division of Workforce Solutions
Wisconsin Works, Emergency Assistance, and Child Care

The Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development proposes an order to repeal ss. DWD 16.08(3), 17.04(2), 55.03(1), 55.03(2)(a), and 55.03(2)(b); to renumber ss. DWD 16.08(4), 16.08(6), 55.03(2)(c), 55.03(2)(d), 56.08(2)(c), 56.08(2)(d), and 56.08(2)(e); to renumber and amend ss. DWD 16.08(5) and 17.04(3); to amend ss. DWD 12.17(2)(a)1., 16.04, 16.04(note), 16.08(1), 17.01, 17.02(5), 17.02(6), 17.02(7), 17.02(8), 17.03(2)(title), 17.03(2)(a)(intro.), 17.03(2)(a)1., 17.03(2)(a)4., 17.03(2)(a)6.a., 17.03(2)(a)6.b., 17.03(4)(intro.)17.03(4)(note), 17.04(1)(intro.), 17.04(1)(a), 17.04(1)(d)1., 17.04(1)(d)2., 17.06, 17.07(1), 17.07(2), 17.07(note), and 56.08(1); to repeal and recreate ss. DWD 17.03(1) and 17.03(3); and to create ss. DWD 16.08(4), 17.02(7m), 17.02(8m), 17.02(9m), 17.03(1m), 17.03(2)(a)5g., 17.03(2)(a)5r, 17.03(2)(a)6.d., 17.04(1)(cg), 17.04(1)(cr), 17.04(1)(d)4., and 56.08(2)(c), relating to Wisconsin Works, emergency assistance, and child care, and affecting small businesses.

Analysis Prepared by the Department of Workforce Development

Statutory authority: Sections 49.138, 49.143 (2) (c), 49.147 (6) (c), 49.155 (5), 103.005 (17), and 227.11 (2), Stats.

Statutes interpreted: Sections 49.138, 49.143 (2) (c), 49.147, and 49.155 (5), Stats.

Related statutes: Sections 48.62 (5) and 49.155 (1m) (c) 1g., Stats.

Explanation of agency authority. Section 49.147 (6) (c), Stats., provides that a W-2 agency shall administer job access loans in accordance with rules promulgated by the department. Section 49.143 (2) (c), Stats., provides that each W-2 agency must employ at least one financial and employment planner (FEP), and the FEP must meet certification and training requirements established by the department by rule. Section 103.005 (17), Stats., provides that the department shall administer those programs of public assistance that specified in subch. III of ch. 49, Stats., including Emergency Assistance, W-2, and child care. Sections 103.005 (1) and 227.11 (2), Stats., provide general authority to promulgate rules necessary to effectuate the purpose of the statutes administered by the department.

Summary of the proposed rules. W-2 job access loans. Section 49.147 (6), Stats., provides that an individual who meets other Wisconsin Works (W-2) eligibility requirements may receive a job access loan needed to obtain or continue employment and address an immediate and discrete financial crisis. Section DWD 12.17 (2) provides that the amount of the loan to an individual may not be less than \$25 and not more than \$1600 in any 12-month period. The W-2 agency must also ensure that the average of all amounts loaned in any 12-month period does not exceed \$800. The proposed rules will

eliminate the requirement that the average of all job access loans issued by a W-2 agency in a 12-month period not exceed \$800. The Legislative Audit Bureau report on the W-2 program issued in April 2005 stated that W-2 agencies report it is time-consuming to calculate ongoing job access loan amounts to comply with this requirement.

Emergency assistance. Section 49.138, Stats., provides for a program of emergency assistance to families with needy children in cases of fire, flood, natural disaster, homelessness, impending homelessness, and energy crisis. Prior to 2005 Wisconsin Act 25, a family could receive emergency assistance once in a 12-month period in cases of need due to fire, flood, natural disaster, energy crisis, or, if a member of the family was a victim of domestic abuse, in cases of need due to homelessness or impending homelessness. A family could receive once in a 36-month period for need due to homelessness or impending homelessness in all other cases. 2005 Wisconsin Act 25 amended s. 49.138, Stats., to provide that a family may be eligible for emergency assistance once in a 12-month period in all cases. The proposed rules amend Chapter DWD 16, relating to emergency assistance, to reflect this statutory change. The proposed rules also provide that an agency shall consider an application complete if the application includes a legible name; address, if available; reasons for the emergency; signature by the applicant or the applicant's representative and has been completed to the best of the applicant's or representative's ability.

W-2 worker training rules. The W-2 worker training rules in Chapter DWD 17 currently provide various training requirements for W-2 agency financial and employment planners (FEPs) and resource specialists. The proposed rules clarify that case managers who perform any FEP function are required to complete the FEP training, regardless of what job title they may hold in the local W-2 agency. This includes case managers who specialize in employment attachment and retention, assist W-2 participants with special needs, or assist W-2 participants with the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and Social Security Disability Income (SSDI) application process.

The proposed rules also clarify that W-2 agencies that subcontract out a portion of their obligations under the W-2 agency contracts with the department are responsible for ensuring that the subcontractors comply with the department's training requirements. The W-2 agencies are also responsible for including subcontractors in the monthly report submitted to the department on training needs for new workers and the annual report submitted to the department on training completed by all workers.

The proposed rules create a new training requirement for workers who supervise W-2 FEPs or resource specialists. Supervisors who are employed on or after the effective date of the rules will be required to complete the department's new worker training for the job function of the workers that the supervisor is supervising during the first 6 months of employment, unless the supervisor worked in that job function within one year prior to the date of hire as a supervisor. Supervisors will also have ongoing training requirements.

In addition, a permanent employee of the W-2 agency who transfers into a FEP position or resource specialist position and who has not completed the initial training for

that position within the previous year will be required to complete the new worker training.

The proposed rules also add civil rights compliance, cultural awareness, and diversity issues; compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); and collaboration and coordination with local child welfare agencies as topics that will be included in the worker training curriculum.

Child care copayment responsibility for subsidized guardians. Section 48.62 (5), Stats., as affected by 2005 Wisconsin Act 25, creates a new program of subsidized guardianship. This program allows guardians who were licensed as the child's foster parents to receive payments in the same amount that they received as foster parents if, among other things, the child has been placed outside of his or her home for a cumulative period of one year or longer, and, despite reasonable efforts to return the child to his or her home, reunification of the child with the child's parent or parents is unlikely or contrary to the best interests of the child. The program also allows for monthly subsidized guardianship payments to an interim caretaker on the death, incapacity, resignation, or removal of a guardian receiving payments.

Section 49.155 (1m) (c) 1g., as affected by 2005 Wisconsin Act 25, provides that when an agency determines financial eligibility for a child care subsidy for a subsidized guardian or interim caretaker of the child, the agency must use the same procedure as is used for determining financial eligibility for a foster parent of a child. The department proposes to also treat subsidized guardians and interim caretakers the same as foster parents in determining the child care copayment amount. Section DWD 56.08 (2) (b) provides that foster parents do not have a copayment responsibility for the foster children in their care. The proposed rules will also provide no copayment responsibility for subsidized guardians and interim caretakers.

Technical corrections in child care rules. The current Chapter DWD 55, relating to day care certification, contains a section on conditions for child care reimbursement that does not relate to certification and more properly belongs in Chapter DWD 56, relating to the administration of child care funds. Much of the information currently in this section, s. DWD 55.03, is a duplicate of information already in Chapter DWD 56 and is repealed in the proposed rules. Information that is not duplicated is renumbered so that it is properly in Chapter DWD 56.

The proposed rules include the current child care copayment schedule that was adjusted effective February 26, 2006, based on changes in the federal poverty level. Section DWD 56.08 (3) allows the department to adjust the amounts in the schedule for various listed factors and to publish adjustments to the schedule in the *Wisconsin Administrative Register*.

Summary of factual data and analytical methodologies. The change to the rule on W-2 job access loans is in response to a recommendation by the Legislative Audit Bureau. The changes to the Emergency Assistance rules are primarily statutory updates to reflect changes in 2005 Wisconsin Act 25, and the zero child care copayment

responsibility for subsidized guardians is a logical extension of 2005 Wisconsin Act 25. The W-2 training rules are amended to reflect demonstrated needs. Other changes are technical corrections.

Comparison with federal law. There are no federal requirements on the changes in the proposed rules.

Comparison with rules in adjacent states. Iowa. There may be maximum emergency assistance payments of a total of \$500 for a 30-day authorization period. These payments may be used for a single need or several needs. One authorization period is allowed per 12-month period. Illinois. Under the subsidized guardian program, payment may be made for day care for children under 3 years of age if the guardian is employed or in a training program that will lead to employment. Michigan. An application for state emergency relief is considered complete when the application form prescribed by the department has been filled out, the application has been signed by the applicant or by the applicant's authorized representative, the application has been received by the department, the applicant has provided information necessary for completion of eligibility forms and the completed form includes signatures of all adult members of the relief group. Minnesota. The department did not find rules on any of the changes in the department's proposed rules.

Effect on small businesses. The proposed rules will affect private W-2 agencies and contractors of W-2 agencies.

The change in the job access loan procedure may reduce administrative expenses for W-2 agencies.

Training requirements for W-2 workers provide tools for efficient, effective service delivery. Worker training may also increase a W-2 agency's customer satisfaction level, which would increase the agency's score on the W-2 performance standards and make it more likely that the agency will be able to renew the W-2 contract with the right of first selection.

The department does not charge agencies a fee for providing training. The only expense that the agencies incur is the worker's time away from normal duties and possible travel expenses. The department does on-site training for agencies that have at least a medium-sized group.

Agency contact person and place where comments are to be submitted. Written comments on the proposed rules received at the following address or email no later than June 1, 2006, will be given the same consideration as testimony presented at the hearing.

Elaine Pridgen
Office of Legal Counsel
Dept. of Workforce Development
P.O. Box 7946
Madison, WI 53707-7946
(608) 267-9403
elaine.pridgen@dwd.state.wi.us

SECTION 1. DWD 12.17 (2) (a) 1. is amended to read:

DWD 12.17 (2) TERMS. (a) 1. W-2 agencies shall issue a job access loan to an eligible individual in an amount not less than \$25 and not more than \$1600 in any 12-month period. ~~The W-2 agency shall ensure that the average of all amounts loaned in any 12-month period does not exceed \$800.~~

SECTION 2. DWD 16.04 is amended to read:

DWD 16.04 Application. Application for emergency assistance shall be made on a form prescribed by the department. Upon receipt of a completed application, the agency shall verify that the emergency was due to fire, flood, natural disaster, homelessness, impending homelessness, or an energy crisis. An agency shall consider the application complete if the application includes a legible name; address, if available; reason for the emergency; signature by the applicant or the applicant's representative and has been completed to the best of the applicant's or representative's ability. Verification of eligibility shall not delay the provision of assistance.

SECTION 3. DWD 16.04 (note) is amended to read:

Note: An application form for emergency assistance may be obtained from a county or tribal economic support agency or a Wisconsin Works (W-2) agency. ~~The addresses of the~~ Contact information for Wisconsin works agencies may be obtained by calling the division of economic support at 608-261-6753 found at <http://www.dwd.state.wi.us/dws/w2/resources/agencyProfiles.htm>.

SECTION 4. DWD 16.08 (1) is amended to read:

DWD 16.08 (1) The agency shall determine eligibility for emergency assistance within 5 working days after receiving a completed application. If the group is found eligible, the agency shall issue a payment to the emergency assistance group within the same 5 working days, ~~except if the group's eligibility is due to homelessness under s. DWD 16.05 (2), the agency shall issue a payment, following the eligibility determination, within 5 working days of the date that the group notifies the agency that a permanent living accommodation has been obtained as provided in subs. (4) and (5).~~ The payment may be made in the form of cash, a voucher, or a vendor payment.

SECTION 5. DWD 16.08 (3) is repealed.

SECTION 6. DWD 16.08 (4) is renumbered DWD 16.08 (3).

SECTION 7. DWD 16.08 (4) is created to read:

DWD 16.08 (4) If the emergency assistance group's eligibility is due to homelessness under s. DWD 16.05 (2), the agency shall issue a payment, following the eligibility determination, within 5 working days of the date that the group notifies the agency that a permanent living accommodation has been obtained.

SECTION 8. DWD 16.08 (5) is renumbered DWD 16.08 (6) and, as renumbered, is amended to read:

DWD 16.08 (6) Emergency assistance ~~provided in cases of fire, flood, natural disaster, energy crisis, or homelessness when a member of the emergency assistance group is a victim of domestic abuse, as defined in s. 968.075 (1)(a), Stats.,~~ may be provided to an emergency assistance group once in a 12-month period.

SECTION 9. DWD 16.08 (6) is renumbered DWD 16.08 (5).

SECTION 10. DWD 17.01 is amended to read:

DWD 17.01 Introduction. (1) AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE. This chapter is promulgated under authority set forth in ss. 49.143 (2) (c) and 103.005 (17), Stats., to ensure that each financial and employment planner ~~and~~, resource specialist, and supervisor employed by a W-2 agency directly or by subcontract has successfully completed a training program to achieve acceptable W-2 worker job performance. Successful completion of prescribed training is required for all new W-2 workers. The department shall make ongoing training available for experienced W-2 workers.

DWD 17.01 (2) APPLICABILITY. This chapter applies to W-2 agencies and the financial and employment planners ~~and~~, resource specialists, and supervisors who are employed by those agencies directly or by subcontract.

SECTION 11. DWD 17.02 (5), (6), and (7) are amended to read:

DWD 17.02 (5) "Experienced financial and employment planner" or "experienced FEP" means a FEP employed by a W-2 agency directly or by subcontract who has completed initial FEP training.

DWD 17.02 (6) “Experienced resource specialist” means a resource specialist employed by a W-2 agency ~~before February 1, 2003~~ or a resource specialist who has completed initial resource specialist training.

DWD 17.02 (7) “Financial and employment planner” or “FEP” means a case manager employed by a Wisconsin works agency directly or by subcontract who determines eligibility, assists in the process of determining eligibility, or performs case management functions. “FEP” includes a case manager who specializes in employment attachment and retention, assists W-2 participants with special needs, or assists W-2 participants with the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and Social Security Disability Income (SSDI) application process.

SECTION 12. DWD 17.02 (7m) is created to read:

DWD 17.02 (7m) “New financial and employment planner” or “new FEP” means an individual who is employed as a financial and employment planner by a W-2 agency, directly or by subcontract, and who has not completed the initial FEP training. “New FEP” includes a permanent employee of the W-2 agency who transfers into a FEP position and who has not completed initial FEP training within the previous year.

SECTION 13. DWD 17.02 (8) is amended to read:

DWD 17.02 (8) “New resource specialist” means a person who is employed by a W-2 agency directly or by subcontract as a resource specialist ~~on or after February 1, 2003~~ who has not completed the initial resource specialist training, including a permanent employee who transfers into a resource specialist position and who has not completed initial resource specialist training within the previous year.

SECTION 14. DWD 17.02 (8m) and (9m) are created to read:

DWD 17.02 (8m) “Participant” means an individual who participates in any component of the Wisconsin works program.

DWD 17.02 (9m) “Supervisor” means a worker employed by a Wisconsin Works agency directly or by subcontract who supervises W-2 financial and employment planners or resource specialists.

SECTION 15. DWD 17.03 (1) is repealed and recreated to read:

DWD 17.03 Initial W-2 worker training. (1) FEPS AND RESOURCE SPECIALISTS. (a) The department shall make initial W-2 worker training available to new FEPs and resource specialists directly or through contractors. The W-2 agency shall ensure that each FEP and resource specialist completes the department's initial training during the first 6 months of employment.

(b) No FEP may make independent decisions related to eligibility or perform case management functions until the initial W-2 training for new FEPs is successfully completed.

(c) No resource specialist may make independent decisions related to providing an initial assessment of a potential W-2 applicant's needs, making referrals to service providers, or evaluating an individual's need for W-2 until the initial W-2 training for new resource specialists is successfully completed.

(d) To successfully complete the initial W-2 training, a new FEP or resource specialist shall attend all class hours and shall participate in all instructional activities. The W-2 agency shall develop evaluation strategies to ensure that the new FEP or resource specialist achieves a minimum standard of competence.

SECTION 16. DWD 17.03 (1m) is created to read:

DWD 17.03 (1m) SUPERVISORS. A supervisor who is employed on or after the effective date of this section...[revisor inserts date] to supervise FEPS or resource specialists shall complete the department's new worker training for the job function of the workers that the supervisor is supervising during the first 6 months of employment, unless the supervisor worked in that job function within one year prior to the date of hire as a supervisor. If a supervisor supervises both FEPs and resource specialists, the supervisor shall be required to complete the FEP training only.

SECTION 17. DWD 17.03 (2) (title), (a) (intro.), (a) 1., and (a) 4. are amended to read:

DWD 17.03 (2) ~~FINANCIAL AND EMPLOYMENT PLANNERS~~ STANDARD CURRICULUM. (a) The department shall develop a standardized curriculum for training new FEPs and resource specialists. The ~~approved~~ standardized curriculum shall include

courses, independent study, and closely supervised practical experience and shall ensure that learning objectives support an acceptable standard of competency at completion. The curriculum may vary depending on job function and may include the following:

1. Program philosophy emphasizing W-2 as a work program.
4. Automated systems used in the W-2 program.

SECTION 18. DWD 17.03 (2) (a) 5g. and 5r. are created to read:

- 5g. Civil rights compliance, cultural awareness, and diversity issues.
- 5r. Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

SECTION 19. DWD 17.03 (2) (a) 6. a. and b. are amended to read:

DWD 17.03 (2) (a) 6. a. Employment and training information for W-2 participants, including job readiness assessment, skills training opportunities, job search activities, labor market information, career planning, and job retention skills.

DWD 17.03 (2) (a) 6. b. Special needs of the W-2 participant or a family member ~~that~~ as those issues affect the W-2 participant's employability, including substance abuse, domestic abuse, and physical or mental disabilities.

SECTION 20. DWD 17.03 (2) (a) 6. d. is created to read:

DWD 17.03 (2) (a) 6. d. Collaboration and coordination with local child welfare agencies.

SECTION 21. DWD 17.03 (2) (b) and (c) are repealed.

SECTION 22. DWD 17.03 (3) is repealed and recreated to read:

DWD 17.03 (3) DOMESTIC ABUSE TRAINING. (a) A FEP shall complete 12 hours of training in domestic abuse awareness within the first year of employment, including case management strategies and the department's comprehensive screening tool.

(b) A resource specialist shall complete 6 hours of training in domestic abuse awareness within the first year of employment.

(c) A supervisor who is required to take the initial W-2 training under sub. (1m) shall complete domestic abuse awareness training for the job function of the workers who the supervisor is supervising.

SECTION 23. DWD 17.03 (4) (intro.) and (note) are amended to read:

DWD 17.03 (4) (intro.) COMPARABLE TRAINING. A W-2 agency may develop its own training to implement the standardized curriculum under sub. (2) ~~or (3)~~, with approval by the department. A W-2 agency that chooses not to participate in the initial training for new W-2 workers offered by the department or its contractors shall submit a training implementation plan to the department for approval at least 45 days before the planned start date of the training. Training plans shall be submitted to the department on an annual basis. The plan shall do all of the following:

Note: Send the proposed W-2 training implementation plan to: BW-2 Partner Training Section, DWD Division of Workforce Solutions, P.O. Box 7972, Madison, WI 53707-7972. A copy of the department's training schedule for new and experienced workers may be obtained by writing the above address or by accessing the Bureau of Wisconsin Works Partner Training website at <http://www.dwd.state.wi.us/dwspts>.

SECTION 24. DWD 17.04 (1) (intro.) and (a) are amended to read:

DWD 17.04 Ongoing training for experienced W-2 workers. (1) STANDARD CURRICULUM. The department shall develop an ongoing course or courses for supervisors, experienced resource specialists, and experienced FEPs and shall make the course or courses available each year directly or through contractors. The department shall annually define required training courses and develop a standardized curriculum for each job function as needed. The curriculum shall include the following:

(a) Policy Refresher material on W-2 policy and procedure in W-2 handbooks, manuals, and instructional materials.

SECTION 25. DWD 17.04 (1) (cg) and (cr) are created to read:

DWD 17.04 (1) (cg) Civil rights compliance, cultural awareness, and diversity issues.

DWD 17.04 (1) (cr) Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

SECTION 26. DWD 17.04 (1) (d) 1. and 2. are amended to read:

DWD 17.04 (1) (d) 1. Employment and training information for W-2 participants, including job readiness assessment, skills training opportunities, job search activities, career planning, labor market information, and job retention skills.

DWD 17.04 (1) (d) 2. Special needs of the W-2 participant or a family member ~~that~~ as those issues affect the W-2 participant's employability, including substance abuse, domestic abuse, and physical or mental disabilities.

SECTION 27. DWD 17.04 (1) (d) 4. is created to read:

DWD 17.04 (1) (d) 4. Collaboration and coordination with local child welfare agencies.

SECTION 28. DWD 17.04 (2) is repealed.

SECTION 29. DWD 17.04 (3) is renumbered DWD 17.04 (2) and, as renumbered, DWD 17.04 (2) (note) is amended to read:

DWD 17.04 (2) Note: Send the proposed W-2 training implementation plan to: BW-2 Partner Training Section, DWD Division of Workforce Solutions, P.O. Box 7972, Madison, WI 53707-7972.

A copy of the department's training schedule for new and experienced workers may be obtained by writing the above address or by accessing the Bureau of Wisconsin Works Partner Training website at <http://www.dwd.state.wi.us/dwspts>.

SECTION 30. DWD 17.06 is amended to read:

DWD 17.06 Local responsibility for implementing updates. ~~[Each]~~ Each W-2 agency shall ensure that all W-2 workers are trained in a timely manner on all W-2 policy and procedure and automated system updates that are issued by the department.

SECTION 31. DWD 17.07 (1), (2), and (note) are amended to read:

DWD 17.07 Reports and records. (1) ANNUAL REPORT OF ALL W-2 WORKER TRAINING. Each W-2 agency shall submit to the department by the second Friday in January of each calendar year a report that documents training completed by all supervisors, new and experienced FEPs, and new and experienced resource specialists during the previous calendar year. The report shall include information on training

received by individuals employed directly by the W-2 agency and individuals employed by the W-2 agency's subcontractors.

(2) REPORT OF INITIAL W-2 WORKER TRAINING. Each W-2 agency shall submit to the department by the first day of each month a list of supervisors, FEPs, and resource specialists who are required to complete initial W-2 worker training, including individuals employed directly by the W-2 agency and individuals employed by the W-2 agency's subcontractors.

Note: Send the monthly list of W-2 workers who are required to complete initial W-2 worker training and the annual report on training to: ~~Training Section, Division of Workforce Solutions, P.O. Box 7972, Madison, WI 53707-7972~~ the appropriate Regional Contract Administrator.

SECTION 32. DWD 55.03 (1) and (2) (a) and (b) are repealed.

SECTION 33. DWD 55.03 (2) (c) and (d) are respectively renumbered DWD 56.04 (1) (b) 3. and 4.

SECTION 34. DWD 56.08 (1) (note) is amended to read:

DWD 56.08 (1) (note): This copayment schedule is current as of ~~March 31, 2003~~ February 26, 2006. DWD may make future adjustments to the schedule as described in sub. (3).

SECTION 35. DWD 56.08 (2) (c), (d), and (e) are respectively renumbered DWD 56.08 (2) (d), (e), and (f).

SECTION 36. DWD 56.08 (2) (c) is created to read:

DWD 56.08 (2) (c) Subsidized guardians or interim caretakers of a child under s. 48.62 (5), Stats., do not have a copayment responsibility for that child in their care.

SECTION 37. EFFECTIVE DATE. This rule shall take effect the first day of the month following publication in the Administrative Register as provided in s. 227.22(2)(intro), Stats.

2006 Child Care Copay Schedule

Child Care Co-Payment Schedule for Licensed and Certified Care																			
Look down the column of the appropriate family size until you find the gross family monthly income level at or just less than the family income. Look to the right to find the appropriate co-payment by family and type of care.																			
	[Gross Monthly Family Income] FAMILY SIZE									Weekly Licensed Care Co-Pay Amount Children In Subsidized Care					Weekly Certified Care Co-Pay Amount Children In Subsidized Care				
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10 or more	1	2	3	4	5 or more	1	2	3	4	5 or more
70% FPL	\$770	\$968	\$1167	\$1365	\$1563	\$1762	\$1960	\$2158	\$2357	5	8	13	17	22	2	6	10	12	16
75% FPL	825	1038	1250	1463	1675	1888	2100	2313	2525	5	11	16	20	25	4	7	11	15	17
80% FPL	880	1107	1333	1560	1787	2013	2240	2467	2693	7	12	17	23	28	6	8	12	17	20
85% FPL	935	1176	1417	1658	1898	2139	2380	2621	2862	11	16	20	25	33	7	11	14	18	22
90% FPL	990	1245	1500	1755	2010	2265	2520	2775	3030	12	19	25	31	37	9	13	17	22	27
95% FPL	1045	1314	1583	1853	2122	2391	2660	2929	3198	16	23	30	37	43	11	16	20	25	32
100% FPL	1100	1383	1667	1950	2233	2517	2800	3083	3367	17	25	33	41	48	12	17	22	28	34
105% FPL	1155	1453	1750	2048	2345	2643	2940	3238	3535	20	28	36	43	51	15	19	24	30	37
110% FPL	1210	1522	1833	2145	2457	2768	3080	3392	3703	23	31	38	46	53	16	22	26	31	38
115% FPL	1265	1591	1917	2243	2568	2894	3220	3546	3872	25	33	41	49	56	18	23	29	34	40
120% FPL	1320	1660	2000	2340	2680	3020	3360	3700	4040	28	36	43	51	59	19	25	30	36	41
125% FPL	1375	1729	2083	2438	2792	3146	3500	3854	4208	31	39	46	54	63	22	27	33	37	44
130% FPL	1430	1798	2167	2535	2903	3272	3640	4008	4377	33	42	51	60	69	23	29	36	41	48
135% FPL	1485	1868	2250	2633	3015	3398	3780	4163	4545	36	46	55	66	75	25	31	39	46	52
140% FPL	1540	1937	2333	2730	3127	3523	3920	4317	4713	38	48	59	69	80	27	34	41	48	55
145% FPL	1595	2006	2417	2828	3238	3649	4060	4471	4882	41	51	60	71	81	29	36	42	51	56
150% FPL	1650	2075	2500	2925	3350	3775	4200	4625	5050	43	53	64	73	85	30	37	45	52	59
155% FPL	1705	2144	2583	3023	3462	3901	4340	4779	5218	46	55	66	76	87	31	40	46	53	60
160% FPL	1760	2213	2667	3120	3573	4027	4480	4933	5387	48	59	69	80	90	34	41	48	56	63
165% FPL	1815	2283	2750	3218	3685	4153	4620	5088	5555	49	61	71	81	92	35	42	51	57	64
170% FPL	1870	2352	2833	3315	3797	4278	4760	5242	5723	50	64	74	85	94	36	45	52	59	65

175% FPL	1925	2421	2917	3413	3908	4404	4900	5396	5892	52	65	76	87	96	37	46	53	60	67
180% FPL	1980	2490	3000	3510	4020	4530	5040	5550	6060	54	68	80	90	99	38	48	56	63	70
185% FPL	2035	2559	3083	3608	4132	4656	5180	5704	6228	55	70	82	91	102	39	51	57	64	71
<<<----- 185% of the Federal Poverty Level ----->>>																			
190% FPL	2090	2628	3167	3705	4243	4782	5320	5858	6397	56	71	85	94	104	40	52	59	65	74
195% FPL	2145	2698	3250	3803	4355	4908	5460	6013	6565	59	73	87	96	107	41	53	60	68	75
200% FPL	2200	2767	3333	3900	4467	5033	5600	6167	6733	60	75	89	99	109	42	55	63	70	76
<<<----- +200% of the Federal Poverty Level ----->>>																			

Note: The copayment rate for teen parents who are not Learnfare participants is minimum copay and is found by selecting the lowest income line (70% FPL) and then finding the copayment listed, under either licensed care or certified care, for the appropriate number of children. Parents who have left a W-2 employment position for unsubsidized work also qualify for the minimum copay for one month. Families with children who are authorized for 20 hours or less are subject to one half of their share of the family copay listed above for those children. No copay is required for parents who participate in Learnfare or Food Stamp Employment and Training. Foster parents do not have a copayment responsibility for the foster children in their care. Subsidized guardians or interim caretakers under s. 48.62 (5), Stats., do not have a copayment responsibility for that child in their care. Kinship care relatives caring for a child under a court order do not have a copayment responsibility. Kinship care relatives caring for a child without a court order pay the minimum copay, unless they are receiving a child care subsidy for another child who is subject to a copayment greater than the minimum copay.